BRADLEY LAKE PROJECT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE MEETING
REGULAR MEETING
Alaska Energy Authority, Anchorage, Alaska
March 21, 2014

1. CALL TO ORDER

Chair Evans called the regular meeting of the Bradley Lake Project Management Committee
(BPMC) to order at 1:00 p.m.

2. COMMITTEE MEMBERS ROLL CALL

Bradley Evans Chugach Electric Association (CEA)

Joe Griffith Matanuska Electric Association (MEA)

Dan Kendall Anchorage Municipal Light & Power (ML&P)
Brad Janorschke Homer Electric Association (HEA)

Cory Borgeson Golden Valley Electric Association (GVEA)

Sara Fisher-Goad Alaska Energy Authority (AEA)

3. STAFF/PUBLIC ROLL CALL

Bryan Carey, Kelli Veech, Teri Webster, Kirk Warren (AEA); Brian Bjorkquist (Department of
Law); Brian Hickey, Mark Johnson, Burke Wick (CEA); Robert Day, Alan Owens (HEA); Jim
Brooks (MEA); Richard Miller, Jeff Warner (ML&P); Bernie Smith (Regulatory Commission of
Alaska (RCA); Matt Clarkson (Brena Bell & Clarkson); Miranda Studstill (Accu-Type
Depositions);

Participating by phone: Kirk Gibson (BPMC); Sherry McKay-Highers (CEA); and Ron Woolf
(GVEA); and Carrie Buckly (HEA).

4. PUBLIC COMMENT
There were no public comments.
5. AGENDA COMMENTS/MOTION FOR APPROVAL

The agenda was approved as amended.

6. APPROVAL OF PRIOR MEETING MINUTES - December 12 & 23, 2013

MOTION: Mr. Griffith made a motion to approve prior meeting minutes of December 12
& 23, 2013. Motion seconded by Mr. Kendall. The motion passed unanimously.

7. NEW BUSINESS

A. FY15 Budget approval

BPMC Minutes 3/21/14 Page 1 of 7



MOTION: Mr. Griffith made a motion to approve FY15 Budget. Motion seconded by Mr.
Borgeson.

Mr. Woolf gave a short summary of the budget changes and reported the Budget Subcommittee
reviewed the 2015 BPMC proposed budget on March 6, 2014. Approval of the budget was
recommended with the caveat for an operator's explanation to the BPMC of two Renewal &
Contingency (R&C) budgeted items of the governor and the fish water screen debris removal.
Mr. Woolf noted Schedule A shows all revenues were down from FY2014, and all expenses
were down from FY2014 except for operations, which increased $801,832.

Chair Evans requested an explanation for the 20% increase in operations. Mr. Day explained
HEA is only in charge of about 40% of the operation and maintenance budget. Mr. Day showed
on Schedule B HEA's increase in operations and maintenance was 8%. Mr. Day noted most of
the increases came in larger items that were embedded as expenses, including $30,000 for loader
tires, expenses related to guidance studies, expenses related to facility summer maintenance
work, and the $301,000 Static VVar Compensator (SVC) repair project.

Chair Evans asked if the $301,000 SVC repair expense is part of the total operations increase of
$801,832. Mr. Miller stated the $301,000 SVC repair expense is part of the operations increase
of $801,832. Chair Evans asked if all of the project work had been reviewed by the Operations
& Dispatch (O&D) Committee. Mr. Day noted this budget was approved by the O&D
Committee. Mr. Brooks concurred and noted the O&D Committee reviewed this budget
thoroughly and unanimously agreed to its approval.

Mr. Day commented a lot of the items within the increase were not under the control of HEA.
Chair Evans stated he did not mean to infer that and only wanted clarification as to what
expenses were included.

Mr. Janorschke directed the Committee's attention to the bottom of Schedule A-1 listing three
line items amounts that are not included in the 2015 proposed budget. These are
recommendations from HEA based on the approved reliability standards. Mr. Janorschke noted
these items were in front of the O&D Committee, but the O&D Committee was awaiting
direction from the BPMC. Chair Evans stated he does not believe the BPMC will resolve that
issue and the O&D Committee should determine whether or not those line items are necessary
because of the reliability standards. Chair Evans commented new people may be needed on the
0O&D Committee who can answer this question. He noted the budget needs to be approved
before the end of March to meet the bond covenants. Mr. Janorschke advised these three line
items are not included in the 2015 proposed budget.

Mr. Janorschke asked a number of questions regarding the management operator audit listed
under Schedule B Bradley Lake Audit Fees; 1. Will this audit be going out for bid? 2. Who is
managing the audit? 3. Will the audit include operation and dispatch?

Chair Evans asked if the scope was provided with this budget item. Mr. Carey stated AEA has
not developed a scope for the audit and it will be developed in conjunction with all of the
utilities.

BPMC Minutes 3/21/14 Page 2 of 7



Mr Janorschke requested a scope of work is provided for all future budgeted line items.

Ms. Fisher-Goad believes this line item is related to the audit with respect to the resolution that
was passed on an analysis of the operations before the 2018 automatic renewal and the intention
was to develop an appropriate scope of work in conjunction with the BPMC.

Mr. Janorschke requested the $100,000 be removed from the budget until the scope of work is
defined and brought before the BPMC. Ms. Fisher-Goad asked if the request is to remove the
operator audit outside of the FY15 budget. Mr. Janorschke agreed and stated the budget can be
amended at the appropriate time.

Chair Evans asked if Mr. Janorschke requests to remove all of the projects included in the budget
that the scope is not fully defined. He suggested Mr. Janorschke consider more flexibility
regarding this matter. Mr. Janorschke noted he understands the need for flexibility and he raised
the question about the audit because he does not believe any of the Committee members had any
discussions regarding the expectation of the scope.

Mr. Borgeson believes the Committee has discussed this audit even though the scope of work has
not been defined. Mr. Borgeson noted he did not realize this audit was included in the current
budget and was going to request it be added to the budget today. Mr. Borgeson believes Mr.
Janorschke has invited this review in a way that would alleviate fears about how the plant is
being operated. Mr. Borgeson suggested the audit include financial review and provide the
necessary due diligence and scrutiny. Mr. Borgeson commented this audit line item is a
commitment to performing the audit and the scope still needs to be defined. He remembers the
Committee discussing this issue with the intent to move forward.

Mr. Janorschke stated he is fine with the audit and does not mean to sound defensive since no
scope of work has been provided. Mr. Janorschke wants to ensure the scope is encompassing
and looks at all aspects of the project. Mr. Janorschke believes HEA is doing an outstanding job
and welcomes the audit.

Mr. Borgeson offered GVEA take the lead role in this auditing procedure, if it is the will of the
Committee, providing a roadmap and proposal for the audit. He believes this will be a good and
healthy process.

Mr. Borgeson noted he has additional questions regarding the budget. He asked if the $100,000
audit is the cause of the administrative cost increase of $101,000 reflected on Item F in the
summary. Ms. Fisher-Goad agreed. Mr. Borgeson asked why has the HEA annual operation and
maintenance Item A in the summary, HEA annual operation and maintenance, increased so much
from FY2013 actual to FY2105 budget.

Mr. Owens reported he provided a breakdown of 2014 versus 2015 budgets for the Budget
Subcommittee. There was a 6.5% increase in labor changes, of which 4% were contractual
increases in the union budget. Contractual issues decreased 19%. Two issues the O&D
Committee recommended were added. Mr. Owens advised $175,000 of the $800,000 of
operating increase are requests from the O&D Committee, Dispatch Committee or HEA. The
remainder includes the SVC upgrades and additions that AEA has included in the budget.

BPMC Minutes 3/21/14 Page 3 of 7



Chair Evans commented he understood Mr. Borgeson's question was regarding the million
dollars and not the $800,000. Mr. Owens stated there are no actual operating increases from
2014 to 2015. There was 2.5% increase in labor, 0% in maintenance, 0% in equipment and
machinery, with the exception of the $30,000 for loader tires, 0% in control and dispatch, with
the exception of a one-time addition recommended by the O&D Committee.

Chair Evans commented it is difficult to analyze everything that is included in the rolled up
FERC accounts from the budget table. Chair Evans recommended the Budget Committee
reinvent this process and review the tables determining a more intuitively obvious way to present
the information to the Committee. After that clarity is provided, the information can then be
rolled into the FERC accounting requirements. Mr. Owens noted the O&D Committee and the
Budget Subcommittee are provided much more detailed information regarding each project that
the BPMC does not see. Mr. Owens agreed with Chair Evans.

Ms. Fisher-Goad stated the FY2013 actual is lower than FY2013 budget. She noted for this year,
there is a lot of money budgeted for the overhead line maintenance, but there does not seem to be
a lot of line maintenance activity occurring and asked if it is being pushed off to next year. Mr.
Owens noted the work was budgeted for 2013, but was not required and moved to 2014. The
overhead line maintenance will begin in mid-May 2014. Ms. Fisher-Goad believes that helps
answer Mr. Borgeson's question of low actuals versus higher requested budget and agreed a
primer budget is a good idea.

Mr. Borgeson commented that explanation answered part of his question. He stated he is still
unsure why the actual variance between 2013 budget and 2013 actual was over $800,000. Mr.
Borgeson noted he sees deferred work in his review of the codes. Mr. Borgeson requested HEA
provide the Committee a three-minute overview of what is involved in their operation of this
plant, including how many full-time equivalents and management structure. He believes this
would be helpful to the Committee.

Mr. Day gave a short overview describing HEA's Bradley Lake plant operations and structure.
There are five operators and Mr. Owens, who is the Plant Superintendent. Mr. Day provides
about 50% of his time to Bradley Lake activities and his supervisor, Harvey Ambrose, provides
part of his time to Bradley Lake activities. Mr. Owens noted there is money budgeted for
engineering time and accounting time.

Mr. Borgeson asked if there was delineation of fully burdened labor and direct labor costs. Mr.
Janorschke asked if the Budget Subcommittee receives a breakdown of the operators' time and
hours allocated. Mr. Day noted he does not have the specifics of what is included in the
breakdown provided to the Budget Subcommittee.

Chair Evans believes the difficulty the Committee is having is not seeing the breakdown of direct
and indirect costs and not having an explanation of why the amounts are larger or smaller
compared to other years.

Mr. Owens advised HEA presents a comprehensive budget spreadsheet to the Budget
Subcommittee and the O&D, which does not carry forward to the BPMC. Chair Evans

BPMC Minutes 3/21/14 Page 4 of 7



commented that is the problem and it takes time to build up the BPMC's understanding so these
kinds of questions are addressed.

Mr. Borgeson asked for HEA's labor, accounting and engineering, how much is Mr. Janorschke's
salary cost allocated to those as part of this project. He asked the same question with respect to
HEA's Board of Directors, insurance, office building and maintenance. Mr. Day stated he is not
sure he can answer that because he sees the monthly bills and has not seen any time specifically
from any of the categories Mr. Borgeson mentioned. Mr. Day stated HEA operates on a direct
cost basis and if somebody works on a Bradley activity, then that cost accrues to the Bradley
budget. There is no overhead applied to any of the HEA bills. Mr. Borgeson appreciated the
clear answer and suggested there is no cost allocation methodology manual because there are no
costs allocated. The costs are just direct.

Mr. Janorschke requested the BPMC members communicate their expectations to their Budget
Subcommittee representatives. Chair Evans believes part of the problem is new people are
involved and they do not have the experience to get the answers.

Mr. Miller commented he believes this budget presentation is similar to what has been provided
for the last 10 years. Mr. Owens stated the Budget Subcommittee received a full breakdown of
HEA's categories, explanations and many detailed documents and believes that information
needs to be relayed to the BPMC.

Mr. Borgeson commented he recognizes there will be more cost, expense and time spent in order
to provide the detail BPMC is requesting and appreciates HEA has provided the detailed
information to the Budget Subcommittee. Mr. Borgeson requested reviewing the cost of
changing how the budget is presented to the BPMC.

Mr. Kendall noted Line F of Schedule B shows FY2014 YTD is $2.06 million and FY2104
budget is $4.8 million. He asked if there are projects or maintenance that are not going forward.
Mr. Owens stated there are several projects still in process, including $250,000 for fire protection
upgrade and $800,000 for the Emerson project. Mr. Day noted the FERC administrative fees,
FERC 928, has a year-to-date of zero, but the budget is $200,000. He commented there are
many activities that occur at Bradley in the spring and summer because winter tends to be the
time for planning and contract negotiations.

Mr. Kendall asked if there are currently any projects that are anticipated to be deferred until next
year. Mr. Owens believes all the projects should be caught up this year and does not anticipate
any project deferrals.

A roll call vote was taken and the motion passed unanimously.

MOTION: Mr. Griffith made a motion instructing the Budget Committee to conduct a
review of the 2015 budget including the calculations and make up of the projected expenses
and analysis of the costs to include how they are created and what process is used for
approval, and to make recommendations on how this information is presented in a more
efficient process. Motion seconded by Mr. Borgeson. The motion passed unanimously.

BPMC Minutes 3/21/14 Page 5 of 7



B. Update on Unit #2 response and Operators Report

Mr. Day advised the BPMC received an operators report as part of their packet. Mr. Day noted
there is a chart from the new DCS appended to the back of the operators report.

Chair Evans asked if this chart reflects an event in the system or was this the unloading. Mr.
Owens advised this chart reflects after an event. Mr. Day explained the chart and noted it was
included to show when the governor is working, it works well.

Mr. Day noted there is a full report attached in the packet regarding a potential oil spill incident
where HEA thought they had spilled 150 gallons of hydraulic oil in the Kachemak Bay last
week. There was no spill but discovered a leak and all of the oil was captured in the dirty water
sump. Mr. Day described the involved hardware.

Mr. Janorschke asked what kind of metal is used for the bushings. Mr. Day stated the bushings
are brass.

Mr. Kendall asked what is the service life of this hardware. Mr. Day stated he does not know
and has been unable to determine the service life. The plant went into service in 1991. One
needle was rebuilt in 2002 and another in 2003, which is about 11 to 12 years of life.

Mr. Kendall asked if HEA has considered rebuilding one a year as part of a systematic annual
maintenance because it sounds like a 12-year rotation. Mr. Day noted they will consider that
option, but he believes it would be more cost effective to rebuild six needles one year and six
needles the next year because of the size and difficulty in mobilizing and demobilizing. The
0O&D Committee has approved the plan to rebuild the existing spare. An outage will be taken
and the leaking needle will be replaced with the rebuilt needle.

Ms. Fisher-Goad thanked HEA for contacting AEA regarding the non-environmental event. She
believes this was a good opportunity to review reporting procedures and noted AEA will offer
recommendations to the BPMC for improving those procedures regarding guidance from BPMC
in non-emergency situations.

8. COMMITTEE ASSIGNMENTS
A. Update from Dispute Resolution Committee

Mr. Griffith reported most of the members of the Dispute Resolution Committee do not believe
they are at an impasse on the issues. Mr. Griffith suggested he meet again with Mr. Borgeson
and Mr. Janorschke in attempt to resolve the issues or to declare an impasse.

Chair Evans reviewed committee assignments and believes the motion passed was a clear
assignment to the Budget Committee. AEA is to review non-emergency reporting requirements
and make recommendations to the BPMC. The O&D Committee is to meet and determine which
issues they can answer regarding HEA recommendations to the approved reliability standards.
Chair Evans requested the O&D Committee work with the operator, maintainers, and AEA to

BPMC Minutes 3/21/14 Page 6 of 7



look at all of the issues discussed today, including Mr. Day's recommendation on repair, issues
concerning reporting, and the request regarding the plan for drawing the lake down.

9. ADJOURNMENT
There being no further business for the committee, the meeting adjourned at 2:26 p.m.

BY: ?ﬁt\é}\ Zoand

Bradley Evans, C{L\an

Attest: gz&»:]\g/v ( m((\

Sara Fisher-Goad
Alaska Energy Authority, Secretary

BPMC Minutes 3/21/14 Page 7 of 7




